
 

 

CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY  

Board of Commissioners Meeting 

City Council Chambers, 2nd Floor 

City Hall, 17011 NE 19th Avenue 

North Miami Beach, FL 33162 

 

December 17rd, 2015 

6:00 P.M. 

 

 
NMBCRA Board of Commissioners:                                                                                                    

Chairman George Vallejo                                                                          

Commissioner Anthony DeFillipo                                                               

Commissioner Phyllis S. Smith                                                         

Commissioner Beth E. Spiegel                                                                    

Commissioner Frantz Pierre 

Commissioner Barbara Kramer 

Commissioner Marlen Martell 

 

Staff: 

Executive Director Ana M. Garcia 

Assistant City Manager Candido Sosa-Cruz 

CRA Attorney Steven Zelkowitz 

CRA Administrator Patrick Brett 

 
AGENDA 

 

 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call 

2. Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting: November 3rd, 2015 

3. Public Comment: 

4. Action Item:   

Resolution: Read Capital Apartments Tax Increment Recapture Incentive Agreement 

RAB Recommendation: Voted 4 to 0 in favor at the December 3rd, 2015 meeting 

5. Executive Director’s Report: 

a. West Dixie Highway Stakeholder’s Meeting on November 18th  

b. Redevelopment Plan Workshop help on November 19th       

6. Next CRA Board Meeting:  January 28th, 2016  

7. Adjournment 



CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH 
BOARDS AND COMMITTEES MEETING MINUTES 

 
NAME OF BOARD/COUNCIL: COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, BOARD 
OF COMMISSIONERS   
NAME OF PERSON PREPARING SUMMARY:  K. MCGUIRE, PROTOTYPE 
NAMES OF STAFF, AND INVITED GUESTS PRESENT: CRA EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
ANA GARCIA, CRA ADMINISTRATOR PATRICK BRETT, CRA COORDINATOR 
RASHA CAMEAU, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER CANDID SOSA-CRUZ, CITY 
ATTORNEY JOSE SMITH, CRA CONSULTANT KEVIN CROWDER 
BOARD MEMBERS: VICE-CHAIR PHYLLIS S. SMITH, COMMISSIONER ANTHONY 
DEFILLIPO, COMMISSIONER BARBARA KRAMER, COMMISSIONER MARLEN 
MARTELL, COMMISSIONER FRANTZ PIERRE, COMMISSIONER BETH SPIEGEL 
 
TYPE OF MEETING: REGULAR MEETING DATE: NOVEMBER 3, 2015 
 
MINUTES 

 
AGENDA ITEM 1 – Call to Order / Roll Call. Vice Chair Smith called the meeting to 
order at 7:27 p.m. Roll was called and it was noted a quorum was present.  

 
AGENDA ITEM 2 – Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting, August 27, 2015. 
Commissioner Pierre made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Martell, to approve the 
minutes. In a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously (5-0). 

 
AGENDA ITEM 3 – Public Comment. At this time Vice Chair Smith opened public 
comment.  
 
Commissioner Spiegel arrived at 7:29 p.m. 
 
Mubarak Kazan, resident, requested clarification of the tax increment recapture program 
available to developers within the CRA. Ms. Cameau briefly explained the program, which 
offers incentives to developers within the CRA in the form of a percentage of the tax 
revenue earned by a project after it has been constructed. The North Miami Beach CRA 
offers 50% of the tax revenue to qualifying projects that apply before October 1, 2017, 
with an additional 25% available if the project also provides certain public benefits. The 
developer would receive the 50% tax increment each year that a project continues to 
meet program guidelines throughout the life of the CRA.  
 
Vice Chair Smith urged any individuals with additional questions to contact City Staff or 
the City Council. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 4 – ACTION ITEM: Read Capital Apartments Tax Increment 
Recapture Incentive Application. It was noted that this Item will be heard once more 
when the CRA Board reconvened as part of the City Council meeting. The Council is 
hearing the Item to approve its Site Plan, which Attorney Smith characterized as a 



City of North Miami Beach 
Community Redevelopment Agency 
November 3, 2015 
Page 2 
 
companion Item to the Application. 
 
Attorney Smith read the following Resolution into the record:  
 

“A Resolution of the Chairman and Board members of the North Miami Beach 
Community Redevelopment Agency, approving the reservation of a tax increment 
recapture incentive for Aventura Property Holdings, LLC, and to direct Staff to 
negotiate a tax increment recapture incentive agreement with Aventura Property 
Holdings, LLC, for review and approval by the Chairman and Board members; 
providing for an effective date.” 

 
A motion was made, and duly seconded, to introduce the Item for discussion. 
 
CRA Consultant Kevin Crowder explained that the Application is for the tax increment 
recapture incentive described earlier. Staff has reviewed the Application to ensure that it 
meets the standard guidelines adopted by the CRA Board and City Council, which provide 
the 50% recapture, as well as the guidelines for the 25% bonus recapture incentive 
requested by the Applicant. A tax increment projection pro forma is included for the 
Commissioners, as well as the amount of the increment that would remain with the CRA.  
 
Mr. Crowder further clarified that the formal incentive agreement between the Applicant 
and the CRA will be returned to the Board for approval at a subsequent meeting. What is 
to be approved at today’s meeting is the reservation of a certain amount of tax increment 
financing (TIF) revenue, which the Board has set aside for qualifying projects. The 
reserved amount will be approximately $48 million.  
 
Commissioner DeFillipo asked if the proposed project is in compliance with the future 
land use of the area. Mr. Crowder advised that the City Council will consider future land 
use as part of the Site Plan approval process during the City Council’s portion of the 
meeting. The project meets all criteria for the TIF increment recapture program. He also 
noted that the subject property has been identified as a priority site within the CRA. 
 
Commissioner Spiegel asked if the Application would be posted online so residents may 
access it. Ms. Cameau assured the Board that Staff would ensure it is available online. 
 
Commissioner Spiegel also asked if approval of the 25% bonus incentive is mandatory. 
Mr. Crowder replied that while it is not mandatory, the 25% is a key component identified 
by the Applicant as necessary to secure financing for the project. He pointed out that the 
project includes 349 residential units, for which rents will be up to 40% over the current 
market rate. This type of project is capable of changing the market within the CRA, which 
means it is compatible with the CRA’s goals.  
 
Mr. Crowder continued that the Applicant has identified two elements from the program’s 
guidelines under which the 25% bonus incentive is requested. The bonus incentive is 



City of North Miami Beach 
Community Redevelopment Agency 
November 3, 2015 
Page 3 
 
requested for $2 million in streetscape and infrastructure improvements, $700,000 of 
which will be made on public property in order to reactivate the canal area as public open 
space. The Applicant also plans to feature public art on the property in a prominent 
location.  
 
It was confirmed that the Redevelopment Advisory Board unanimously approved the 
project. 
 
Commissioner Martell made a motion, seconded by Commissioner DeFillippo, to 
approve. In a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5 – Executive Director’s Report. 

 New CRA Administrator 
 
CRA Executive Director Ana Garcia introduced new CRA Administrator Patrick Brett, who 
is a former CRA Executive Director for the city of Bartow. 
 

 2015 Florida Redevelopment Association Conference 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6 – Next CRA Board Meeting: (Workshop) November 19, 2015 @ 
6:00 p.m. / Regular Meeting December 17, 2015 @ 6:00 p.m. 
 
A motion was made, and duly seconded, to recess the meeting at 7:49 p.m. In a voice 
vote, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Commissioner DeFillipo made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Pierre, to recess the 
City Council meeting and reconvene the CRA meeting at 10:04 p.m. 
 
Attorney Smith reread the Resolution for re-adoption. 
 
Mr. Brett provided a brief review of the Item, explaining that the Resolution would reserve 
a portion of the $200 million TIF revenue cap for the Applicant. It does not bind the Board 
to provide any funds, but reserves $48 million for the Applicant. A contract will be 
presented for formal adoption at the December 19 CRA Board meeting.  
 
Commissioner Spiegel requested clarification that the CRA could reserve funds in this 
manner for a project that is in part residential. Mr. Crowder advised that there is no 
restriction of CRA dollars from residential uses, clarifying that when the CRA was created, 
it was limited to commercial areas and could not extend into residential neighborhoods. 
There is nothing to preclude the CRA from using the TIF recapture incentive to attract 
additional residential investment. Commissioner DeFillipo pointed out that the Application 
includes plans for retail and commercial space in addition to its residential element, and 
emphasized that the Applicant has qualified for the TIF recapture program.  



City of North Miami Beach 
Community Redevelopment Agency 
November 3, 2015 
Page 4 
 
 
Commissioner Spiegel requested that Staff consult with the CRA Attorney before the Item 
comes back to the Board for final approval. Attorney Smith advised that CRA Attorney 
Steven Zelkowitz had drafted the Resolution that is now before the Board, and confirmed 
that a legal opinion will be provided at the next meeting. 
 
Vice Chair Smith advised that the CRA is limited to using its funds within a specific district 
of the City, and may not spend CRA dollars outside this area, regardless of how blighted 
another neighborhood may be. She added that the subject property will hopefully provide 
an incentive to neighboring property owners to bring their properties up to a similar 
standard and use them to the maximum benefit of the district.  
 
Mr. Crowder strongly emphasized the importance of having a friendly and helpful Staff 
that will work with investors and developers to achieve their shared goals.  
 
In a voice vote, the Resolution passed by unanimous consensus (6-0). 

 
AGENDA ITEM 7 – Adjournment. There being no further business to come before the 
Board at this time, the meeting was adjourned at 10:17 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CRA POLICY RESOLUTION NO. 2015-4 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD 

MEMBERS OF THE NORTH MIAMI BEACH 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

APPROVING A TAX INCREMENT RECAPTURE 

INCENTIVE AGREEMENT WITH NORTH MB 

OWNER, LLC; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER THE TAX 

INCREMENT RECAPTURE INCENTIVE 

AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO IMPLEMENT THE TERMS AND 

CONDITIONS OF THE TAX INCREMENT 

RECAPTURE INCENTIVE AGREEMENT; 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, Aventura Property Holdings, LLC (“Aventura Property Holdings”) 

submitted to the North Miami Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (“CRA”) a Tax 

Increment Recapture Incentive Application (the “Application”) for redevelopment of the 

property located at 2145 NE 164th Street, North Miami Beach, Florida (the “Property”); 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the project includes an eight (8) story building with three hundred 

forty nine (349) residential units and ten thousand nine hundred eighty five (10,985) square 

feet of retail space and a parking garage with five hundred seventy four (574) parking 

spaces (collectively, the “Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Application was reviewed and determined complete by CRA 

staff; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CRA Board previously approved a reservation of a Tax Increment 

Recapture Incentive for the Project and directed CRA staff to negotiate a Tax Increment 

Recapture Incentive Agreement for review and approval by the CRA Board; and 

 

WHEREAS, Aventura Property Holdings conveyed the Property to North MB 

Owner, LLC (the “Developer”) pursuant to that certain Special Warranty Deed dated 

November 24, 2015, and recorded in Official Records Book 29874, Page 778 of the Public 

Records of Miami-Dade County, Florida; and 

 



CRA POLICY RESOLUTION NO. 2015-4 

 

WHEREAS, the Developer submitted supplemental information indicating that, 

with the exception of the change in ownership of the Property and the composition of the 

development team, the remainder of the Application and the Project remained unchanged; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the CRA Board desires to enter into a Tax Increment Recapture 

Incentive Agreement with the Developer substantially in the form attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A” and by this reference made a part hereof. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD 

MEMBERS OF THE NORTH MIAMI BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY: 

Section 1. Recitals.  The recitals in the whereas clauses are true and correct, 

and incorporated into this Resolution. 

 

Section 2. Approval of Tax Increment Recapture Incentive Agreement.  

The Tax Increment Recapture Incentive Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and by 

this reference made a part hereof is hereby approved with such non-material changes as 

approved by the CRA Executive Director and approved as to form and legality by the CRA 

Attorney. 

 

Section 3. Execution and Delivery of Tax Increment Recapture Incentive 

Agreement.  The CRA Executive Director is hereby authorized to execute and deliver the 

Tax Increment Recapture Incentive Agreement. 

 

Section 4.  Implementation of Tax Increment Recapture Incentive Agreement.  

The CRA Executive Director is hereby authorized to take all steps necessary and 

appropriate to implement the terms and conditions of the Tax Increment Recapture 

Incentive Agreement with the Developer. 

 

Section 5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 

approval.   

  



CRA POLICY RESOLUTION NO. 2015-4 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a    vote of the Board of the North Miami 

Beach Community Redevelopment Agency, this 17th day of December, 2015. 

 

ATTEST:     NORTH MIAMI BEACH COMMUNITY 

      REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

 

             

CITY CLERK     GEORGE VALLEJO, CHAIRMAN 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

      

GRAY ROBINSON, P.A. 

CRA ATTORNEY 

 

 

SPONSORED BY:  ADMINISTRATION 

 

      Moved by:     

 

      Seconded by:     

 

 

 

Vote: 

 

Chairman George Vallejo      (Yes)    (No) 

Board Member Anthony F. DeFillipo     (Yes)    (No) 

Board Member Barbara Kramer     (Yes)    (No) 

Board Member Marlen Martell     (Yes)    (No) 

Board Member Frantz Pierre      (Yes)    (No) 

Board Member Phyllis S. Smith     (Yes)    (No) 

Board Member Beth E. Spiegel     (Yes)    (No) 

















#34336011_v3 

Prepared By: 

 

Javier E. Fernandez, Esq. 

Stearns Weaver Miller Weissler Alhadeff & Sitterson, P.A. 

150 W. Flagler Street, 22nd Floor 

Miami, FL  33131 

 

After recording return to: 

 

Steven W. Zelkowitz, Esq. 

Gray Robinson, P.A. 

333 S.E. 2nd Avenue, Suite 3200 

Miami, FL  33131 

 

THE READ CAPITAL APARTMENTS 

TAX INCREMENT RECAPTURE INCENTIVE AGREEMENT 

 

THIS READ CAPITAL APARTMENTS TAX INCREMENT RECAPTURE 

INCENTIVE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made as of this 17th day of December, 2015, 

by and between NORTH MB OWNER, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the 

“Developer”) and the NORTH MIAMI BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, 

a public agency and body corporate created pursuant to Section 163.356, Florida Statutes (the 

“CRA”).    

RECITALS: 
 

A. The CRA was formed for the purpose of removing slum and blight within a portion 

of the City of North Miami Beach (“City”) described as the redevelopment area (“Redevelopment 

Area”) and to promote redevelopment and employment therein. 

B. Developer is the owner of all of that certain real property located at 2145 NE 164th 

Street in the Redevelopment Area, which is more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached 

hereto and made a part hereof (the “Property”), which has been identified as one of the three (3) 

priority acquisition sites within the Redevelopment Area in the 2010-2011 Amended Plan (the 

“Amended Plan”).  

C. Developer intends to redevelop the Property as a mixed-use project consisting of 

an eight (8) story building containing approximately three hundred forty nine (349) residential 

units and approximately eleven thousand (11,000) square feet of ground floor, commercial space 

supported by a parking garage with more than five hundred seventy (570) parking spaces as well 

as private and public recreational amenities (the “Project”).  

D. Pursuant to the CRA Tax Increment Recapture Incentive Program, the Developer 

submitted an application requesting that the CRA provide economic incentives to assist with the 

defraying the cost of certain public improvements to the right-of-way and abutting public property, 

as well as financing the gap between existing market rents and the projected rents necessary to 

underwrite the Project. 



2 

 

E. On November 3, 2015, the CRA Board adopted CRA Policy Resolution No. 2015-

3 (the “Resolution”), which approved as reservation of the Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payment 

(as defined below) and the Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payment (as defined below) subject to 

and contingent upon the approval of a Tax Increment Recapture Incentive Agreement with the 

Developer by the CRA Board 

F. At the CRA Board meeting held on December 17, 2015, the CRA Board adopted 

CRA Policy Resolution No. 2015-4 approving this Agreement pursuant to which the CRA is 

willing to provide certain economic incentives to assist Developer, subject to the terms and 

conditions as hereinafter provided. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and 

agreements hereinafter set forth and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Developer and the CRA hereby agree as follows: 

1. RECITALS.  The Recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein by reference 

and made a part hereof. 

2. DEFINITIONS.  The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the 

following meanings: 

2.1 “Amended Plan” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the 

Recitals. 

2.2 “Anticipated Development Value” shall have the meaning ascribed to said 

term in Section 4.1. 

2.3 “Approved Site Plan” shall have the meaning ascribed to said term in 

Section 3.1.1. 

2.4 “Art Installation” shall have the meaning ascribed to said term in Section 

3.1.2. 

2.5 “Assignee” means a Person to whom a right or liability is transferred and 

which shall have the right, but not the obligation, to enforce any of the terms of this Agreement 

against any other party hereto. 

2.6 “Assignment Notice” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in 

Section 4.2.3. 

2.7 “Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payment” shall have the meaning ascribed 

to such term in Section 4.2.1. 

2.8 “Base Year” shall mean the calendar year preceding the calendar year in 

which the tax rolls for the County with respect to any Folio Number with respect to a portion of 

the Property reflect an increase in the assessed value of the Property as a result of the Substantial 

Completion of the Project.  



3 

 

2.9 “Bond Obligations” has the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 5.1.  

2.10 “Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payment” shall have the meaning ascribed 

to such term in Section 4.2.1. 

2.11 “City” means the City of North Miami Beach, a municipal corporation of 

the State of Florida. 

2.12 “City Approval” means the approval by the City Council of the CRA 

Budget for the applicable year, which CRA Budget includes the Base Recapture TIF Incentive 

Payment and the Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payment. 

2.13 “County” means Miami-Dade County, a political subdivision of the State 

of Florida. 

2.14 “County Approval” means the approval by the Board of County 

Commissioners of the CRA Budget for the applicable year which includes the Base Recapture TIF 

Incentive Payment and the Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payment. 

2.15 “CRA” shall have the meaning ascribed to the term in the introductory 

paragraph.   

2.16 “CRA Board” means the board of commissioners of the CRA. 

2.17 “CRA Budget” means the annual budget for the operation of the CRA 

approved by the CRA Board, subject to City Approval and County Approval. 

2.18 “CRA Budget Approval” means the approval by the CRA Board of the 

annual CRA Budget which includes a line item for the Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payment and 

the Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payment for the applicable year. 

2.19 “Developer” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the 

introductory paragraph and shall further include the Developer’s successors and assigns. 

2.20 “Default Notice’ shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 

11. 

2.21 “Effective Date” means the date of execution and delivery of this 

Agreement by all parties hereto. 

2.22 “Executive Director” means the executive director of the CRA. 

2.23 “Incremental TIF” shall mean, for each tax year, the tax increment revenues, 

if any, actually received by the CRA from the County and City with respect only to Improvements 

constructed on the Property after the Effective Date after deduction for any (i) allocable 

administrative charges imposed by the County and the City (but not administrative costs associated 

with the operation of the CRA), (ii) other adjustments to the assessed value of the Improvements 

made by the City and/or County as a result of challenges or tax contests with respect to the assessed 



4 

 

value of the Property, and (iii) reductions in tax increment revenues to the CRA as a result of (a) 

dedications made subsequent to the Effective Date resulting in any reduction in the tax increment 

revenues paid to the CRA with respect to the portion of the Property so dedicated and (b) 

demolition of any improvements located on the Property as of the Effective Date.  For avoidance 

of any doubt, Incremental TIF specifically does not include any existing incremental revenues 

received by the CRA associated with the land comprising the Property or improvements on the 

Property located on the Property as of the Effective Date.   

2.24 “Project” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the Recitals. 

2.25 “Property” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the Recitals. 

2.26 “Redevelopment Area” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the 

Recitals.  

2.27 “Substantially Completed” or “Substantial Completion,” or words of like 

import, means that the construction or development of the Project, the Waterfront Improvements, 

and the Art Installation have been substantially completed in accordance with the Approved Site 

Plan and/or applicable plans and specifications and that a temporary or permanent certificate of 

occupancy, or its equivalent, has been issued by the City for the Project, the Waterfront 

Improvements and the Art Installation. 

2.28 “Term” shall mean the period commencing on the Effective Date of this 

Agreement and terminating on March 1, 2028 which is the sunset date of the CRA. 

2.29 “TIF Agreement” has the meaning ascribed to said term in Section 5.3. 

2.30 “Waterfront Improvements” means the utility improvements, public 

pedestrian right-of-way improvements, public parks and other similar types of improvements, to 

be installed for the benefit of the Project and public on the Waterfront Property.  The Waterfront 

Improvements anticipated by Developer are identified on Page L-1 of Exhibit “B”. 

2.31 “Waterfront Property” shall have the meaning ascribed such term in Section 

3.1.1. 

3. PUBLIC BENEFIT COMMITMENTS. 

3.1 Development Commitments.  As a material inducement to the CRA to 

provide the Base Recapture Incentive Payment and Bonus Recapture Incentive Payment, as 

applicable, for the benefit of the Project pursuant to this Agreement, and in the interest of furthering 

the goals of the CRA, Developer (for itself and its respective successors and assigns) hereby 

covenants and agrees to install the Waterfront Improvements (as defined below) and install and 

maintain the Art Installation (as defined below) for the public benefit during the Term of this 

Agreement: 

3.1.1 Royal Glade Canal Enhancements:   Developer shall install 

landscaping and related improvements (the “Waterfront Improvements”) within a portion of such 

City-owned referred to as South Everglades Drive and located immediately North of the Property 



5 

 

(a portion of Tract B) and immediately South of the southern boundary of the Royal Glade Canal 

and further bounded on East by W. Dixie Highway and on the West by NE 21st Avenue (the 

“Waterfront Property”), a such Waterfront Property is depicted in the 2nd Amended Plat of Part of 

the First Addition to Fulford, recorded in Plat Book 47, Page 46 of the Public Records of Miami-

Dade County, Florida.  The Waterfront Improvements shall be consistent with the plans submitted 

on page LP-1 of the READ Capital Apartments site plan application, approved by the City Council 

on November 3, 2015, via the adoption of Resolution No. R2015-92 (the “Approved Site Plan”).   

A copy of the Approved Site Plan is attached hereto as Exhibit “B.” 

3.1.2  Art in Public Places:  Developer shall, following consultation with 

and the approval of the City Manager, or his or her designee, install and maintain (in accordance 

applicable industry standards) such art, sculpture, or other artistic installation (the “Art 

Installation”) acceptable to the City within that portion of the Property immediately abutting W. 

Dixie Highway which was the subject of the Variance request from the Maximum Front Setback 

on a Primary Street approved by the City Council on November 3, 2015, via the adoption of 

Resolution No. No. R2015-92.  Developer’s obligation with regard to the maintenance of the Art 

Installation shall survive the expiration of the Term of this Agreement.  Upon the expiration of the 

Term, the Developer agrees to enter into a maintenance agreement with the City for the Art 

Installation on terms and conditions acceptable to the City in all respects. 

4. DEVELOPMENT OF PROJECT AND PROJECT INCREMENTAL TIF. 

4.1 Development of Project.  Developer anticipates that the Project shall be 

constructed in a single phase.  Developer further anticipates that the assessed value of the Project 

will be a minimum of Forty-Eight Million Four Hundred Four Thousand Four Hundred Eight and 

No/100 Dollars ($48,404,408) (the “Anticipated Development Value”).  Developer estimates that 

Anticipated Development Value will generate approximately Five Hundred Forty Thousand One 

Hundred Sixty-Four and 12/100 Dollars ($540,164.12) Incremental TIF annually for the entirety 

of Project, with such Incremental TIF beginning as of January 1, 2018.  Estimated Incremental TIF 

attached to this Agreement on Exhibit “C.” 

Developer acknowledges and agrees that it bears the entire risk under this Agreement if the 

Project is valued at less than the Anticipated Development Value and/or is not developed within 

the time frame anticipated by the Developer resulting in the share of the Incremental TIF payable 

by the CRA pursuant to this Agreement being less than anticipated by Developer.  Developer 

acknowledges and agrees that if the estimated Incremental TIF proves to be inaccurate, the same 

shall not relieve Developer of its obligations pursuant to this Agreement. 

4.2 Development Incentive.  Subject to CRA Budget Approval by the CRA 

Board, City Approval and County Approval, as well as the CRA’s receipt of the Incremental TIF 

on an annual basis in all cases, as an inducement to the development of the Project, the CRA agrees 

to pay to Developer a percentage of Incremental TIF as follows: 

4.2.1 Payment of Incremental TIF.  On an annual basis for each calendar 

year commencing after the Base Year and continuing throughout the Term of this Agreement, the 

CRA shall pay to Developer a base recapture TIF incentive payment equal to Fifty Percent (50%) 

of the Incremental TIF (the “Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payment”) and a bonus recapture TIF 



6 

 

incentive payment equal to Twenty-Five Percent (25%) of the Incremental TIF (the “Bonus 

Recapture TIF Incentive Payment”).  All Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payments and Bonus 

Recapture TIF Incentive Payments shall be due and payable within thirty (30) days of the later to 

occur of (a) CRA’s receipt of Incremental TIF or (b) Developer’s providing to the CRA of proof 

of payment of the real estate taxes for the Property prior to delinquency for the applicable year.  

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Developer’s right to receive the Base 

Recapture TIF Incentive Payments and Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payments is expressly 

subject to and condition upon the payment of the real estate taxes for the Property prior to 

delinquency for the year from which a Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payment and Bonus 

Recapture TIF Incentive Payment would be due.  In the event the real estate taxes for the Property 

are not paid prior to delinquency for the year from which a Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payment 

and Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payment would be due, the CRA shall have no obligation to 

make the Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payment and Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payment for 

that year and the Developer shall not be entitled to any the Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payment 

and Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payment for that year. 

4.2.2 Right to Recapture TIF Incentive Payments; Conditions Precedent.  

Developer acknowledges and agrees that the Substantial Completion of the Project, the Waterfront 

Improvements the Art Installation is an express condition precedent to the Developer’s right to 

receive the Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payment and the Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive 

Payment.  Without limiting the foregoing, if such Substantial Completion shall not have occurred 

as of January 1, 2021, then the Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payment and the Bonus Recapture 

TIF Incentive Payment based upon the Incremental TIF derived from Project shall automatically 

and by operation of law without the need for further action by either party be divested and shall 

terminate and be of no further force and effect and the Developer shall not be entitled to any 

Incremental TIF with respect to the Project.  In such event, this Agreement shall be deemed 

terminated and of no further force an defect between the parties and the CRA shall be released by 

the Developer from its obligations hereunder. 

4.2.3 Right to Collaterally Assign TIF Incentive Payments.  Developer, in 

its sole and absolute discretion, may collaterally assign its right to receive the Base Recapture TIF 

Incentive Payments and Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payments in connection with any 

construction and/or permanent financing of the development of the Project.  The CRA shall 

execute and deliver such reasonable documentation requested by Developer’s lender provided that 

such assignment does not result in any financial or other material obligations on the part of the 

CRA.  As a condition precedent to the execution and delivery of any such documentation, the 

Developer shall pay the reasonable legal and administrative costs of the CRA in connection with 

its review of such documentation 

4.2.4 Right to Receive TIF Incentive Payments After Sale.  

Notwithstanding the Developer’s sale, lease or other disposition of all or any portion of the Project 

(including, but not limited to the, the sale or lease of all or any portion of the residential units or 

commercial uses contemplated as part of the Project), the Developer shall continue to receive the 

Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payments and Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payments for the 

Term of this Agreement subject to the terms and conditions hereof including, but not limited to, 

the payment of real estate taxes for the Property prior to delinquency. 



7 

 

4.2.5 Limitation on Use of Recapture TIF Incentive Payments.  Base 

Recapture TIF Incentive Payments and Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payments paid during the 

Term of this Agreement shall be used for the sole and exclusive purpose of paying and/or 

reimbursing the costs of the construction, maintenance, operation, and debt service/debt issuance 

costs of the Project to the extent such payments are a permitted use of TIF Increment pursuant to 

Chapter 163 Part III, Florida Statutes. 

4.2.6 Term of Agreement.  Provided that all conditions precedent have 

been satisfied and this Agreement has not terminated pursuant to Section 4.2.2 above, the 

Developer’s right to receive the Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payments and Bonus Recapture TIF 

Incentive Payments shall continue for the Term of this Agreement and shall terminate and expire 

with the Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payment and Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payment from 

the Incremental TIF for CRA fiscal year 2027-2028. 

5. SUBORDINATION OF TIF INCENTIVE PAYMENTS.   

5.1 Developer acknowledges and agrees that the obligations of the CRA under 

this Agreement to make Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payments and Bonus Recapture TIF 

Incentive Payments hereunder are junior and subordinate to the obligations of the CRA to pay debt 

service with respect to any bonds, notes, loans or other debt instruments issued by the CRA or for 

which the CRA is responsible for the payment of debt service as of the date of this Agreement 

(collectively the “Bond Obligations”).  Under no circumstances shall the CRA be obligated to 

make Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payments and Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payments from 

its general revenues or any other sources if Incremental TIF is unavailable after the CRA makes 

all required payments with respect to the Bond Obligations.  To the extent no Incremental TIF or 

only a portion of the Incremental TIF is available to pay the CRA's obligations under this 

Agreement as a result of the Bond Obligations, the Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payments and 

the Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payments, if any, shall be reduced to the amount of Incremental 

TIF available, if any, and the shortfall shall be deferred to subsequent year(s).  If requested by the 

CRA or the party to which the Bond Obligations are owed, the Developer shall execute a 

subordination agreement confirming that this Agreement is junior and subordinate to any Bond 

Obligations within ten (10) business days of written request by the CRA. 

5.2 Pledge of TIF Revenues.   In the event the CRA issues additional bonds, 

notes, loans or other debt instruments subsequent to the Effective Date, the CRA covenants and 

agrees not to pledge the Incremental TIF derived from the Project which will be payable to 

Developer under this Agreement as collateral for such bonds. 

5.3 Additional Agreements Regarding Use of Incremental TIF.  Developer 

acknowledges and agrees that nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed 

to prevent the CRA from entering into agreements similar to this Agreement (each a “TIF 

Agreement”) pursuant to which the CRA commits to pay such developers a portion of the 

Incremental TIF generated from their project within the Redevelopment Area.  Developer 

acknowledges and agrees that Incremental TIF generated from other projects which are subject to 

TIF Agreement(s) will not be available to make up for any shortfall under Section 5.1.  

6. CHALLENGES. 



8 

 

6.1 No Liability.  Developer hereby forever waives and releases the CRA from 

any liability whatsoever, now or hereafter arising in connection with any challenge to this 

Agreement by a third party and covenants and agrees not to initiate any legal proceedings against 

the CRA in connection with any challenges to this Agreement (other than as a result of a default 

by the CRA with respect to its obligations under this Agreement). 

6.2 Duty to Defend.  In the event of any challenge to this Agreement, any party 

in interest, at its or their sole cost and expense, may defend any such challenge by a third party.  

The CRA shall cooperate with Developer and, if necessary, participate in the defense of such 

challenge provided Developer pays the cost of such defense. 

6.3 The Developer hereby covenants and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless 

the CRA its board members and the City and its Councilmembers and their respective  employees, 

consultants, attorneys and/or agents (collectively the “Related Parties”) from and against all liability, 

losses or damages, including attorneys’ fees and costs, at both the trial and appellate levels, which 

the CRA and/or the Relate Parties may suffer as a result of claims, demands, suits, causes of actions 

or proceedings of any kind or nature arising out of, relating to or resulting from the performance or 

non-performance of this Agreement by the Developer or its members, employees, agents, servants, 

lenders, contractors, subcontractors and materialmen including, without limitation, the Developer’s 

failure to comply with a public records request to which the Developer is legally obligated to 

comply.  The Developer shall pay all claims and losses and shall investigate and defend (with legal 

counsel acceptable to CRA) all claims, suits or actions of any kind or nature in the name of the 

CRA, where applicable, including appellate proceedings, and shall pay all costs, judgments, and 

attorney’s fees and costs which may issue.  The Developer expressly understands and agrees that 

any insurance carried by the Developer shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep 

and save harmless and defend the CRA and the Related Parties.  Nothing contained in this 

Agreement shall be construed to affect the CRA’s right of sovereign immunity as provided in 

Chapter 768, Florida Statutes.  Additionally, the CRA does not waive sovereign immunity. 

7. REPRESENTATIONS OF DEVELOPER.  Developer makes the following 

representations to the CRA as follows: 

7.1 The entity comprising Developer is a limited liability company, duly 

organized and validly existing under the laws of its state of formation and has full power and 

capacity to own their properties, to carry on their business as presently conducted, and to enter into 

the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

7.2 Developer's execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement has  

been duly authorized by all necessary company actions and does not conflict with or constitute a 

default under any indenture, agreement or instrument to which such entities are a party or by which 

they may be bound. 

7.3 This Agreement constitutes the valid and binding obligation of Developer, 

enforceable against Developer in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency and 

other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally. 



9 

 

8. REPRESENTATIONS OF THE CRA.  The CRA makes the following 

representations to Developer: 

8.1 The CRA is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State 

of Florida and has full power and capacity to own its own properties, to carry on its business as 

presently conducted by the CRA, and to perform its obligations under this Agreement.   

8.2 The CRA’s execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement has 

been duly authorized by all necessary actions and does not conflict with or constitute a default 

under any indenture, agreement or instrument to which it is a party or by which it may be bound. 

8.3 This Agreement constitutes the valid and binding obligations of the CRA, 

enforceable against the CRA in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency and 

other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally.   

9. NOTICES.  All notices, demands, designations, certificates, requests, offers, 

consents, approvals, appointments and other instruments given pursuant to this Agreement 

(collectively called “Notices”) shall be in writing and given by (a) hand delivery, (b) recognized 

express overnight delivery service, (c) certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or 

(d) facsimile and shall be deemed to have been delivered upon (i) receipt, if hand-delivered, (ii) the 

next Business Day, if delivered by express overnight delivery service, (iii) if sent by certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested the day evidenced by the return receipt or the day delivery 

is refused; or (iv) transmittal, if sent on a business day by facsimile and if sent by facsimile on a 

day other than a business day, on the first business day following transmittal.  Notices shall be 

provided to the parties and addresses specified below: 

DEVELOPER: 

 

NORTH MB OWNER, LLC 

2801 SW 31st Avenue, Ste. 2B 

Miami, Florida 33133 

Attention:  Jay Jacobson 

Fax:  (305) ___-______ 

  

Copy to: 

 

Stearns Weaver Miller Weissler Alhadeff & Sitterson, P.A. 

150 W. Flagler Street 

Suite 2200 

Miami, FL  33130 

Attention:  Javier E. Fernandez, Esq. 

Fax:  (305) 789-3501 

 



10 

 

 CRA: 

 

City of North Miami Beach 

Community Redevelopment Agency 

17050 NE 19th Avenue 

North Miami Beach, FL  33162 

Attention:  Ana M. Garcia, Executive Director 

Fax:  (305) 957-3602 

 

 Copy to: 

 

City of North Miami Beach 

c/o City Attorney  

17011 N.E. 19th Avenue 

North Miami Beach, FL  33162 

Attention:  Jose Smith, Esq., City Attorney 

Fax:  (305) 787-6004 

 

Gray Robinson, P.A. 

333 SE 2nd Avenue, Ste. 3200 

Miami, Florida 33131 

Attention:  Steven Zelkowitz, Esq. 

Fax: (305) 416-6887 

 

10. NON-RECOURSE.  This Agreement is non-recourse to the CRA.  In the event of 

a breach of this Agreement by the CRA, the Developer (may seek specific performance of this 

Agreement or bring an action at law which shall be limited to recovery of any Base Recapture TIF 

Incentive Payments and Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payments due under the terms of this 

Agreement and in no event shall Developer or any Assignee have the right to seek damages against 

the CRA.  Without limiting the foregoing, the Developer waives any right to seek consequential 

and/or punitive damages against the CRA. 

11. DEFAULT BY DEVELOPER.  In the event Developer breaches or defaults in its 

duties and obligations under this Agreement, and such failure is not cured within thirty (30) days 

of the issuance of written notice of default specifying the breach (the “Default Notice”); provided 

however, if the default, by its nature cannot reasonably be cured within such thirty (30) day period 

and if, within the initial thirty (30) day period the Developer has provided the CRA with written 

notice specifying the reason why such breach cannot be cured within the initial (30) day period 

and has commenced and is diligently pursuing curative action, the Developer shall have up to one 

hundred twenty (120) days from the date of the default notice to cure the specified breach or 

default.  For so long as any breach or default shall continue, the obligations of the CRA under this 

Agreement with respect to Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payments and the Bonus Recapture TIF 

Incentive Payments shall be suspended, and if any such suspension shall continue for more than 

one hundred twenty (120) days, then the CRA shall have the right to terminate this Agreement 

upon written notice to the Developer and, in such case, this Agreement shall terminate and the 

CRA shall have no further duties or obligations under this Agreement to the Developer including, 

but not limited to, the payment of Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payments and Bonus Recapture 



11 

 

TIF Incentive Payments otherwise due and owing after the date of the Default Notice..  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the CRA shall be entitled to all remedies available at law or in 

equity.  The notice and cure provisions set forth above shall expressly not apply to (a) achieving 

Substantial Completion by January 1, 2021 and/or (b) the payment of real estate taxes for the 

Property prior to delinquency, for both of which time is of the essence and there is no notice or 

cure period. 

12. ADJUSTMENT TO FOLIO NUMBERS.  Developer and CRA each acknowledge 

that the current tax folio numbers with respect to the Property may change as a result of the 

redevelopment of the Property in connection with the Project.  In such event, the Executive 

Director of the CRA and the Developer shall proceed in good faith to agree as to which new folio 

numbers are applicable to portions of the Project, based upon the adjustment in such new folio 

numbers by the Miami-Dade County Property Appraiser. 

13. RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN PARTIES.  This Agreement does not evidence the 

creation of, nor shall it be construed as creating, a partnership or joint venture between the CRA 

and Developer.  No party can create any obligations or responsibility on behalf of the others or 

bind the others in any manner.  Each party is acting for its own account, and it has made its own 

independent decisions to enter into this Agreement and as to whether the same is appropriate or 

proper for it based upon its own judgment and upon advice from such advisors as it has deemed 

necessary.  Each party acknowledges that none of the other parties hereto is acting as a fiduciary 

for or an adviser to it in respect of this Agreement or any responsibility or obligation contemplated 

herein.  Developer further represents and acknowledges that no one was paid a fee, commission, 

gift or other consideration by such party or such party's agent as an inducement to entering into 

this Agreement.  It is expressly understood and intended that the Developer, its agents and 

employees, are not agents or employees of the CRA, but are only recipients of funding support, 

and Developer is not an agent or instrumentality of the CRA. 

14. AGREEMENT TO RUN WITH THE LAND.  This Agreement, and all rights and 

obligations herein, shall be binding upon Developer and its respective successors and assigns and 

run with title to the Property.  Developer represents and warrants to the CRA that it is the fee 

simple owner of the Property. 

15. BUDGET & APPROPRIATION.  CRA covenants and agrees to budget the Base 

Recapture TIF Incentive Payment and Bonus Recapture TIF Incentive Payment as a line item in 

its annual operating budget subject to CRA Board Approval, City Approval and County Approval.  

CRA further covenants to use governmentally reasonable efforts to procure annual approval of its 

operating budget, including the Base Recapture TIF Incentive Payment and Bonus Recapture TIF 

Incentive Payment as contemplated by this Agreement, by both the City and County.   

16. CONSULTANT AND PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION.  Developer each has 

retained consultants and professionals to assist Developer with the negotiation and execution of 

this Agreement, and Developer may compensate those consultants and professionals at their 

standard hourly rate for services performed, or any other method of compensation that is 

considered standard and reasonable for that particular service.  Notwithstanding anything to the 

contrary contained herein, in no event shall Developer compensate any such consultant or 



12 

 

professional in any form that would be deemed a “bonus,” “success fee” or “finder's fee” in 

exchange for the CRA Board’s approval of this Agreement. 

17. MISCELLANEOUS. 

17.1 All of the parties to this Agreement have participated fully in the negotiation 

and preparation hereof, and, accordingly, this Agreement shall not be more strictly construed 

against any one of the parties hereto and shall be interpreted in a accordance with its plain meaning. 

17.2 In the event any term or provision of this Agreement is determined by 

appropriate judicial authority to be illegal or otherwise invalid, such provision shall be given its 

nearest legal meaning or be construed as deleted as such authority determines, and the remainder 

of this Agreement shall be construed to be in full force and effect. 

17.3 In the event of any litigation between the parties under this Agreement, the 

prevailing party shall be entitled to recover attorneys' fees and costs at trial and all appellate levels. 

17.4 In construing this Agreement, the singular shall be held to include the plural, 

the plural shall be held to include the singular, the use of any gender shall be held to include every 

other and all genders, and captions and Paragraph headings shall be disregarded. 

17.5 All of the exhibits attached to this Agreement are incorporated in, and made 

a part of, this Agreement. 

17.6 Time shall be of the essence for each and every provision of this Agreement. 

17.7 No provision of this Agreement is intended, nor shall any be construed, as 

a covenant of any official (either elected or appointed), director, employee or agent of the CRA, 

in an individual capacity. 

17.8 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Florida.   

17.9 This Agreement may be recorded in the Public Records of Miami-Dade 

County at the sole cost and expense of Developer. 

17.10 This Agreement may not be changed, altered or modified except by an 

instrument in writing signed by the party against whom enforcement of such change would be 

sought and, with respect the CRA, approved by the CRA Board. 

17.11 From time to time and upon written request from the Developer, the 

Executive Director, on behalf of the CRA, shall execute an estoppel certificate or similar 

certification, in form, scope and substance reasonably acceptable to the requesting party, 

confirming Developer’s compliance with the conditions set forth in this Agreement (and/or 

disclosing any then failure or default by either such party). 

17.12 No express or implied consent or waiver by the CRA to or of any breach or 

default by the Developer in the performance or non-performance by the Developer of its 



13 

 

obligations under this Agreement will be deemed or construed to be a consent or waiver to or of 

any other breach or default in the performance by the Developer of the same or any other 

obligations the Developer hereunder.  Failure by the CRA to complain of any act or failure to act 

of the Developer or to declare the Developer in default, irrespective of how long such failure 

continues will not constitute a waiver by the CRA of its rights hereunder.  The giving of consent 

by the CRA in any one instance will not limit or waive the necessity to obtain the CRA’s consent 

in any future instance. 

17.13 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the 

CRA and the Developer and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either 

written or oral. 

17.14 Neither of the parties intend to directly or substantially benefit any third 

party by this Agreement.  Therefore, the parties agree that there are no third party beneficiaries to 

this Agreement and that no third party shall be entitled to assert a claim against either of them 

based upon this Agreement. 

18. Public Records.  To the extent required by law, the Developer shall comply with all 

public records requests, whether made to the CRA or to the Developer, for the Developer’s books 

and records which relate to the Project and which books and records are not exempted under 

Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.  In the event the Developer is required by law to comply with a 

public records request and fails to do so, the Developer shall indemnify the CRA and the Related 

Parties in accordance with Section 6.3 above.  The foregoing obligation shall expressly survive the 

expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.   

19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and 

understanding between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and there are no other 

agreements, representations or warranties other than as set forth herein.  This Agreement shall be 

binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

20. PUBLICITY.  The Developer shall ensure that any publicity, public relations, 

advertisements and signs recognize the CRA as a funding source for the Project.  The Developer shall 

permit a sign to be placed upon the Property by the CRA relative to this Agreement. 

21. JURISDICTION; VENUE AND WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  EACH OF 

THE PARTIES IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY (A) AGREES THAT ANY 

SUIT, ACTION OR OTHER LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING 

TO THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE BROUGHT IN THE FEDERAL OR STATE COURT 

SITUATED IN MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA; (B) CONSENTS TO THE 

JURISDICTION OF EACH SUCH COURT IN ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR 

PROCEEDING; AND (C) WAIVES ANY OBJECTION WHICH IT MAY HAVE TO THE 

LAYING OF VENUE OF ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING IN ANY OF 

SUCH COURTS.  EACH PARTY WAIVES ALL RIGHTS TO ANY TRIAL BY JURY IN 

ALL LITIGATION RELATING TO OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT.   

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 



14 

 

IN WITNESS hereof the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first above 

written. 

       DEVELOPER: 

 

WITNESSES: 

 

 

       

 

       

Print Name 

 

 

       

 

       

Print Name 

 

 

NORTH MB OWNER, LLC, 

a Delaware limited liability company 

 

 

 

By:       

Name:       

Title:       

 

 

 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 

     )  

COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of December, 2015, 

by ______________, as _______________ of NORTH MB OWNER, LLC, a Delaware limited 

liability company, on behalf of the company, who (check one) [  ] is personally known to me or [  

] has produced ______________________as identification. 

       

Notary Public, State of Florida at Large 

 

Printed Name: 

My Commission expires: 

 

 

  



15 

 

 
 

CRA: 

 

NORTH MIAMI BEACH COMMUNITY 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, a public 

agency and body corporate created pursuant 

to Section 163.356, Florida Statutes 

ATTEST 

 

 

 

By:       By:       

Pamela Lattimore      Ana M. Garcia 

 Clerk of the Board     Executive Director 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND  

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 

 

 

 

By:        

 Gray Robinson, P.A. 

 CRA Attorney 

 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 

     )  

COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of December, 2015, 

by Ana M. Garcia, as Executive Director of the NORTH MIAMI BEACH COMMUNITY 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, on behalf of the agency, who (check one) [  ] is personally known 

to me or [  ] has produced ______________________as identification. 

       

Notary Public, State of Florida at Large 

 

Printed Name: 

My Commission expires: 

 
 



#34336011_v3 

 

Exhibit “A” 

 

Legal Description of Property 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



















#34336011_v3 

Exhibit “B” 

Approved Project Site Plan 

 

 
 



  

Exhibit “C” 

Estimated TIF 

 



Av
en

tu
ra

 H
ol

di
ng

s,
 L

LC
Ta

x 
In

cr
em

en
t S

um
m

ar
y

N
ov

em
be

r 3
, 2

01
5

RM
A

Co
un

ty
 M

ill
ag

e
4.

66
69

Ci
ty

 M
ill

ag
e

6.
60

36

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

To
ta

l V
al

ua
tio

n
48

,4
04

,4
08

$ 
 

48
,8

88
,4

52
$ 

 
49

,3
77

,3
37

$ 
 

49
,8

71
,1

10
$ 

 
50

,3
69

,8
21

$ 
 

50
,8

73
,5

19
$ 

 
51

,3
82

,2
54

$ 
 

51
,8

96
,0

77
$ 

 
52

,4
15

,0
38

$ 
 

52
,9

39
,1

88
$ 

 

Co
un

ty
 T

ax
es

22
5,

89
9

$ 
   

   
 

22
8,

15
8

$ 
   

   
 

23
0,

43
9

$ 
   

   
 

23
2,

74
3

$ 
   

   
 

23
5,

07
1

$ 
   

   
 

23
7,

42
2

$ 
   

   
 

23
9,

79
6

$ 
   

   
 

24
2,

19
4

$ 
   

   
 

24
4,

61
6

$ 
   

   
 

24
7,

06
2

$ 
   

   
 

Ci
ty

 T
ax

es
31

9,
64

3
$ 

   
   

 
32

2,
84

0
$ 

   
   

 
32

6,
06

8
$ 

   
   

 
32

9,
32

9
$ 

   
   

 
33

2,
62

2
$ 

   
   

 
33

5,
94

8
$ 

   
   

 
33

9,
30

8
$ 

   
   

 
34

2,
70

1
$ 

   
   

 
34

6,
12

8
$ 

   
   

 
34

9,
58

9
$ 

   
   

 
To

ta
l N

ew
 T

ax
54

5,
54

2
$ 

   
   

 
55

0,
99

7
$ 

   
   

 
55

6,
50

7
$ 

   
   

 
56

2,
07

2
$ 

   
   

 
56

7,
69

3
$ 

   
   

 
57

3,
37

0
$ 

   
   

 
57

9,
10

4
$ 

   
   

 
58

4,
89

5
$ 

   
   

 
59

0,
74

4
$ 

   
   

 
59

6,
65

1
$ 

   
   

 

50
%

 to
 P

ro
je

ct
27

2,
77

1
$ 

   
   

 
27

5,
49

9
$ 

   
   

 
27

8,
25

4
$ 

   
   

 
28

1,
03

6
$ 

   
   

 
28

3,
84

7
$ 

   
   

 
28

6,
68

5
$ 

   
   

 
28

9,
55

2
$ 

   
   

 
29

2,
44

7
$ 

   
   

 
29

5,
37

2
$ 

   
   

 
29

8,
32

6
$ 

   
   

 
25

%
 B

on
us

13
6,

38
5

$ 
   

   
 

13
7,

74
9

$ 
   

   
 

13
9,

12
7

$ 
   

   
 

14
0,

51
8

$ 
   

   
 

14
1,

92
3

$ 
   

   
 

14
3,

34
2

$ 
   

   
 

14
4,

77
6

$ 
   

   
 

14
6,

22
4

$ 
   

   
 

14
7,

68
6

$ 
   

   
 

14
9,

16
3

$ 
   

   
 

To
ta

l t
o 

Pr
oj

ec
t

40
9,

15
6

$ 
   

   
 

41
3,

24
8

$ 
   

   
 

41
7,

38
0

$ 
   

   
 

42
1,

55
4

$ 
   

   
 

42
5,

77
0

$ 
   

   
 

43
0,

02
7

$ 
   

   
 

43
4,

32
8

$ 
   

   
 

43
8,

67
1

$ 
   

   
 

44
3,

05
8

$ 
   

   
 

44
7,

48
8

$ 
   

   
 

20
%

 to
 C

RA
10

9,
10

8
$ 

   
   

 
11

0,
19

9
$ 

   
   

 
11

1,
30

1
$ 

   
   

 
11

2,
41

4
$ 

   
   

 
11

3,
53

9
$ 

   
   

 
11

4,
67

4
$ 

   
   

 
11

5,
82

1
$ 

   
   

 
11

6,
97

9
$ 

   
   

 
11

8,
14

9
$ 

   
   

 
11

9,
33

0
$ 

   
   

 

5%
 to

 T
ax

 A
ut

h
27

,2
77

$ 
   

   
   

27
,5

50
$ 

   
   

   
27

,8
25

$ 
   

   
   

28
,1

04
$ 

   
   

   
28

,3
85

$ 
   

   
   

28
,6

68
$ 

   
   

   
28

,9
55

$ 
   

   
   

29
,2

45
$ 

   
   

   
29

,5
37

$ 
   

   
   

29
,8

33
$ 

   
   

   
Co

un
ty

11
,2

95
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,4

08
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,5

22
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,6

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,7

54
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,8

71
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,9

90
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
,1

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
,2

31
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
,3

53
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ci
ty

15
,9

82
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
,1

42
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
,3

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
,4

66
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
,6

31
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
,7

97
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
,9

65
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
,1

35
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
,3

06
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
,4

79
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l
N

PV
To

ta
l

N
PV

To
ta

l
N

PV
To

ta
l N

ew
 T

ax
5,

70
7,

57
5

$ 
   

 
3,

79
1,

96
5

$ 
   

 
6,

25
4,

02
6

$ 
   

 
4,

12
2,

38
9

$ 
   

 
6,

86
1,

76
7

$ 
   

 
4,

48
8,

18
7

$ 
   

 

50
%

 to
 P

ro
je

ct
2,

85
3,

78
8

$ 
   

 
1,

89
5,

98
2

$ 
   

 
3,

12
7,

01
3

$ 
   

 
2,

06
1,

19
4

$ 
   

 
3,

43
0,

88
4

$ 
   

 
2,

24
4,

09
3

$ 
   

 
25

%
 B

on
us

1,
42

6,
89

4
$ 

   
 

94
7,

99
1

$ 
   

   
 

1,
56

3,
50

7
$ 

   
 

1,
03

0,
59

7
$ 

   
 

1,
71

5,
44

2
$ 

   
 

1,
12

2,
04

7
$ 

   
 

To
ta

l t
o 

Pr
oj

ec
t

4,
28

0,
68

1
$ 

   
2,

84
3,

97
4

$ 
   

4,
69

0,
52

0
$ 

   
3,

09
1,

79
1

$ 
   

5,
14

6,
32

5
$ 

   
3,

36
6,

14
0

$ 
   

20
%

 to
 C

RA
1,

14
1,

51
5

$ 
   

75
8,

39
3

$ 
   

   
 

1,
25

0,
80

5
$ 

   
82

4,
47

8
$ 

   
   

 
1,

37
2,

35
3

$ 
   

89
7,

63
7

$ 
   

   
 

5%
 to

 T
ax

 A
ut

h
28

5,
37

9
$ 

   
   

 
18

9,
59

8
$ 

   
   

 
31

2,
70

1
$ 

   
   

 
20

6,
11

9
$ 

   
   

 
34

3,
08

8
$ 

   
   

 
22

4,
40

9
$ 

   
   

 
Co

un
ty

11
8,

17
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

78
,5

09
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
9,

48
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

85
,3

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
2,

06
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

92
,9

24
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ci
ty

16
7,

20
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

11
1,

08
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

18
3,

21
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

12
0,

76
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

20
1,

02
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

13
1,

48
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1%
 G

ro
w

th
 R

at
e

3%
 G

ro
w

th
 R

at
e

5%
 G

ro
w

th
 R

at
e



 

 

CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY  

17050 NE 19th Avenue, Room 122 
North Miami Beach, FL 33162 

NMBCRA.com 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Chair and Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM:  Ana M. Garcia, Executive Director 
 
VIA:  Patrick Brett, CRA Administrator 
 
DATE:  December 12th, 2015 
 
RE:  Executive Director’s Report 
 

 
 
The CRA RAB voted 4 – 0 in favor of the Read Capital Tax Increment Finance Agreement at its 
December 3rd meeting. 
 
West Dixie Highway Stakeholder Meeting 
 
On Wednesday, November 18th, 2015, the CRA held a stakeholder meeting for the property owners 
and the merchants along West Dixie Highway. The items discussed were the City’s new zoning 
districts, the approved development projects, and proposed infrastructure improvements. 
Redevelopment Management Associations (RMA) presented a PowerPoint and the draft of the CRA 
West Dixie Highway Implementation Strategy (version 2).  
 
Redevelopment Plan Public Workshop 
 
On Thursday, November 19th, 2015, the CRA held a Redevelopment Plan Public Workshop. Draft 
version 2.3 of the Redevelopment Plan was presented and discussed. Ken Stapleton of Ken Stapleton 
and Associates presented a PowerPoint of the proposed improvements and modifications to the 
existing CRA Redevelopment Plan. The Redevelopment Plan should be updated every three to five 
years to keep it current. New items proposed in this update are: 
 

a) Adjustments for recent changes to the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code, 
b) Updated financial projections, and 
c) Integration of the West Dixie Highway Implementation Plan. 


	20151217 Board Agenda (final)
	AgendaP_1.pdf
	2_20151217 Board Agenda (draft)
	3_110315 NMB CRA 1st draft minutes 20151209_PB_Revisions2
	READ Capital Apts - TIF Recap  Incen  Prgm  Rev  App  Submittal
	CRA Resolution 2015_4 READ CAPITAL
	4_READ Capital Apts - TIF Recapture Incentive Agreement - Final  Rev  Mark-Up WITH RESO INFO
	5_20151209 ExDir Board Meeting Memo
	READ Capital Nov 3 TIF projections.pdf
	Sheet1



